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Richmond Planning Board Meeting 
Town Hall 

Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

 
Members present: Richard Bell, Douglas Bruce, John Hanson (Chairman), Katherine Keenum 
Member absent: Peter Lopez 
Others present: Jami Grossman, Jeff Morse, town residents 
 
The meeting opened at 6:30 P.M.  
 

1. Mr. Hanson introduced a letter from Elizabeth Goodman, Richmond Town Counsel, to the 
Massachusetts Attorney General (see Exhibit 1). Ms. Goodman wrote in response to an objection by 
MassAudubon to the Open Space and Recreation bylaw amendment passed by the voters at 
Richmond's Annual Town Meeting on May 18, 2022.  
 
At its meeting on July 11, 2022, the Planning Board had referred to the only version of the objection 
that it had received at that time (KP-#820733-v1-AUDB_-
_LTR_AAG_re_Richmond_Richmond_bylaw_(6_30_2022). That version was included as an exhibit 
in the minutes for the July meeting.  On August 14, 2022, Mr. Hanson received and distributed the 
revised version that had actually been submitted to the Attorney General. He wished to include it in 
tonight's minutes as a matter of record (see Exhibit 2). 
 
Members agreed that the Planning Board minutes of July 11, 2022, correctly reported what had been 
said then but that Exhibit 2 should be included in the minutes for September 12, 2022, to clarify the 
record of correspondence. They also agreed that no further discussion or action was required. 
 
From the floor, Mr. Morse asked why no minutes had been posted at the town website since June. Ms. 
Keenum explained that there had been no August meeting and so the July minutes could not be 
approved until tonight. She would send them (if approved) to the Town Clerk's office the next day for 
posting. 
 
2. Mr. Bell moved that the minutes of July 11, 2022, be approved as written. Mr. Bruce seconded. 
The motion carried unanimously, 4–0. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 6:40 P.M.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Katherine Keenum, Clerk 
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Exhibit 1: Letter from Elizabeth Goodman to the Assistant Attorney General 

 
 

 

{ECG/141210001/00888497.1}  

 
 

66 West Street, Pittsfield, Massachusetts 01201 Tel. 413-443-4771   Fax 413-443-7694 
Direct Dial: 413-629-1312    egoodman@cainhibbard  

 
September 2, 2022 

 
BY ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY Margaret.hurley@state.ma.us 
 
Margaret J. Hurley, Esq. 
Assistant Attorney General 
Director - Municipal Law Unit 
Ten Mechanic Street, Suite 301 
Worcester, MA 01208 
 
 Re: Town of Richmond Zoning Bylaw Amendment 

Re Attorney General's Review of Article 7 from Richmond May 2022 
Annual Town Meeting (case # 10551) 
 

Dear Margaret:  
 
Thank you for contacting me as Town Counsel for the Town of Richmond regarding 
comments filed with your office regarding your review of the Town of Richmond’s 
Zoning Bylaw Amendment approved by the voters as Article 7 at the May 2022 Annual 
Town Meeting (the “Zoning Bylaw Amendment”). As set forth in detail below, the 
Zoning Bylaw Amendment does not violate the provisions of G.L. c. 40A Section 3 and 
the Town Board of Selectmen respectfully request that you approve the Zoning Bylaw 
Amendment.  
 
On July 7, 2022, and again in reply to comments filed by the Berkshire Natural 
Resources Council (“BNRC”), Attorney Jonathan D. Witten of KP Law filed comments 
with your office on behalf of the Massachusetts Audubon Society (“Mass Audubon”).  
Stating that Mass Audubon meets the criteria for protection under the Dover Amendment, 
(July 7, 2022 comment at 5), Attorney Witten stated the Zoning Bylaw Amendment 
“amounts to a total prohibition on educational and research facilities and must be 
disapproved as inconsistent with the Dover Amendment…” (July 7, 2022 KP Law 
comment letter at 8).  
 
Actually, Mass Audubon is allowed all of its Dover Amendment activities by right under 
the Zoning Bylaw for the Town of Richmond, and thus the Zoning Bylaw Amendment 
should not be disapproved by your office. I have attached with this letter the current 
Town of Richmond Zoning Bylaw. A review of the entire Zoning Bylaw shows that in 
the Table of Use Regulations, Section 4.8 (4) “ [r]eligious or educational use on land 
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owned or leased by the Commonwealth or any of its agencies, subdivisions or bodies politic, or 
by a religious sect or denomination, or by a non-profit educational corporation” is a use allowed 
by right in all districts. Thus, under this provision, any entity that qualifies for limitations on 
zoning restrictions under G.L.c. 40A, Section 3 and pursuant to the case law regarding the 
“Dover Amendment” would be entitled to conduct its operations with no special permit in the 
Town of Richmond.  

The Zoning Bylaw Amendment does not change this by right use. Instead, for entities that do not 
qualify for Dover Amendment protection, the Zoning Bylaw allows those who choose not to 
charge for parking and permit public access to their land for conservation, education new 
principal and accessory uses. This is consistent with the long-standing support for open space 
shown by the voters and elected officials in the Town. Furthermore, this type of support for 
individuals who allow access to their land for no charge is part of the law in the Commonwealth. 
G,L. c. 21 Section 17 C provides a limitation on liability for property owners who allow public 
access for recreational purposes “without imposing a charge or a fee therefor...” The Zoning 
Bylaw Amendment is consistent with this concept.  

As shown by the vote of 233 to 62, the Zoning Bylaw Amendment has overwhelming support by 
the voters in the Town. This was an important local decision and we ask your office to support 
this. In addition, over $500,000 of public and private funds have been invested in the Town to 
acquire and preserve open space land for public uses over the last 25 years. The Town of 
Richmond has preserved some of the most beautiful and environmentally diverse land in the 
county. The Select Board unanimously supports the Zoning Bylaw Amendment.  

I am available at your convenience should you have any additional questions or want 
clarification of this letter.  

Very truly yours, 
CAIN HIBBARD & MYERS PC  

Elisabeth C. Goodman Enclosures  
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Exhibit 2: Letter from Jonathan D. Witten to the Assistant Attorney General 
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